# NetWitness<sup>®</sup> Platform Version 12.3.1.0

Windows Legacy Collection



#### **Contact Information**

NetWitness Community at https://community.netwitness.com contains a knowledge base that answers common questions and provides solutions to known problems, product documentation, community discussions, and case management.

#### Trademarks

RSA and other trademarks are trademarks of RSA Security LLC or its affiliates ("RSA"). For a list of RSA trademarks, go to <u>https://www.rsa.com/en-us/company/rsa-trademarks</u>. Other trademarks are trademarks of their respective owners.

#### **License Agreement**

This software and the associated documentation are proprietary and confidential to RSA Security LLC or its affiliates are furnished under license, and may be used and copied only in accordance with the terms of such license and with the inclusion of the copyright notice below. This software and the documentation, and any copies thereof, may not be provided or otherwise made available to any other person.

No title to or ownership of the software or documentation or any intellectual property rights thereto is hereby transferred. Any unauthorized use or reproduction of this software and the documentation may be subject to civil and/or criminal liability.

This software is subject to change without notice and should not be construed as a commitment by RSA.

#### **Third-Party Licenses**

This product may include software developed by parties other than RSA. The text of the license agreements applicable to third-party software in this product may be viewed on the product documentation page on NetWitness Community. By using this product, a user of this product agrees to be fully bound by terms of the license agreements.

#### Note on Encryption Technologies

This product may contain encryption technology. Many countries prohibit or restrict the use, import, or export of encryption technologies, and current use, import, and export regulations should be followed when using, importing or exporting this product.

#### Distribution

Use, copying, and distribution of any RSA Security LLC or its affiliates ("RSA") software described in this publication requires an applicable software license.

RSA believes the information in this publication is accurate as of its publication date. The information is subject to change without notice.

THE INFORMATION IN THIS PUBLICATION IS PROVIDED "AS IS." RSA MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION IN THIS PUBLICATION, AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

#### Miscellaneous

This product, this software, the associated documentations as well as the contents are subject to NetWitness' standard Terms and Conditions in effect as of the issuance date of this documentation and which can be found at https://www.netwitness.com/standard-form-agreements/.

© 2023 RSA Security LLC or its affiliates. All Rights Reserved.

November, 2023

## Contents

NetWitness Legacy Windows Collection Update and Installation Instruction	ns 4
Setup Requirements	5
Update the NetWitness Legacy Windows Collector from 10.6.x to 12.0	7
Fresh Install 12.0 Legacy Windows Collector	12
Configure the Windows Server	16
Change the Windows Legacy Collector IP Address	17
Troubleshoot a Fresh or Upgrade Install	18
Logs to Examine for Information	
Issues with the Lockbox	
(Optional) Backup and Restore Legacy Windows Collector	19
Restore the Windows Legacy Collection Backup after Upgrade	19
Revert Windows Legacy Collection from 12.0 Back to 10.6.4	
Add or Reconfigure a Windows Legacy Collector Host and Service in NetWitness Platform	21

## **NetWitness Legacy Windows Collection Update and**

## **Installation Instructions**

NetWitness Legacy Windows collection collects event data from multiple Windows Event Source domains.

It supports collection from:

- Windows 2003 and earlier event sources
- NetApp ONTAP host evt files

This document contains the following sections:

- Setup Requirements
- Update the NetWitness Legacy Windows Collector from 10.6.x to 12.0
- Fresh Install 12.0 Legacy Windows Collector
- Configure the Windows Server
- Change the Windows Legacy Collector IP Address
- Troubleshoot a Fresh or Upgrade Install
- (Optional) Backup and Restore Legacy Windows Collector
- Add or Reconfigure a Windows Legacy Collector Host and Service in NetWitness Platform

## **Setup Requirements**

This section provides the NetWitness Legacy Windows Collector Setup requirements.

**Caution:** If you are installing or updating to version 11.x, in order to use the Security Analytics Legacy Windows Collector with NetWitness, you need to first install the following windows updates:

- KB2919355
- KB2919442
- KB2999226
- KB3173424

If these updates are not installed, you will get an error message, and the Legacy Windows Collector will not be installed.

To set up the NetWitness ® Platform Legacy Windows Collector, you need:

- Any of the following physical or virtual systems that can reach the Windows 2003 event source domains:
  - Windows 2008 R2 SP1 64-Bit Server,
  - Windows 2012 Server, or
  - Windows 2016 Server, or
  - Windows 2019 Server
- A minimum of 20% free disk space. For example, you need at least 20 GB of free space if your system drive is 100 GB in size.

**IMPORTANT:** Do not install the Legacy Windows Collector on a domain controller.



• For NetWitness Platform 11.6 and Later (Upgrade and Fresh Install), you must download and install Visual studio 2019 x64 runtime before running the Windows Legacy Collector installer. You can download the Visual Studio 2019 x64 at https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/help/2977003/the-latest-supported-visual-c-downloads.

# Update the NetWitness Legacy Windows Collector from 10.6.x to 12.0

This section tells you how to update the NetWitness 10.6.x Legacy Windows Collector to 12.0

#### To update the NetWitness 10.6.x Legacy Windows Collector to 12.0 on a Windows 64-Bit server:

- 1. Depending on your version of NetWitness, navigate to one of the following URLs on NetWitness Community:
  - For NetWitness 11.6.1.1, go to https://community.netwitness.com//t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-platform-11-6-1-1-patch-download/ta-p/643401 and click NetWitness Platform 11.6.1.1 Upgrade Pack to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.6, go to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-6-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/606860 and click NetWitness Logs & Network 11.6 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.5, go to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-5-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/572571 and click NetWitness Logs & Network 11.5 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.4, go to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-4-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/565269 and click
     NetWitness Logs & Packets 11.4 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.3, go to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-3-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/556065 and click
     NetWitness Logs & Packets 11.3 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.2, go to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-2-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/526984 and click
     NetWitness Logs & Packets 11.2 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.1, go to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-1-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/551450 and click
     NetWitness Logs & Packets 11.1 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
- 2. Unzip the downloaded file.
- 3. Log on to a Windows 2008, 201, 2016, or 2019 Server.
- 4. Copy NWLegacyWindowsCollector-version-number.exe to the Windows Server.
- 5. Right click on NWLegacyWindowsCollector-version-number.exe and select Run As Administrator.

The Preparing to Install.... page of update installation wizard is displayed.



After the update installation program extracts NetWitness Legacy Windows Collector installation files, the **Welcome** page is displayed.

🙀 Netwitness Legacy Wind	lows Collector	×
	Welcome to the Installation Wizard for RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector The Installation Wizard will allow you to modify, repair, or remove RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector. To continue, click Next.	
	<pre></pre>	

#### 6. Click Next.

The License Agreement page is displayed.

License Agreement			4
Please read the following license agre	ement carefully.		
LICENSE AGREEMENT			*
*** : BRAD CABEFIIT.T.Y ***	IMPORTANT INFO	RMATION PLEAS	Е
This : programs and other pr information, the use expressly conditioned License Agreement (th	Software conta oprietary mate of which is su upon acceptan e Aqreement).	ins computer rial and bject to and ce of this	×
I accept the terms in the license agre I do not accept the terms in the licen etellicitied	eement se agreement	Pri	nt
scalioniela	12 22	1007	

7. Read the License agreement carefully, select the I accept the terms in the license agreement radio button, and click Next.

Before it starts the update, the wizard asks if you want to continue or cancel the installation of the update.

Please reac	the following license agreement carefully.	
LICENSE	AGREEMENT	1
READ CA	ASE	
program informa <sup>.</sup>	Upgrading NwLogCollector from 10.6.5.0-14165.1.6648892 to 11.0.0.0-14561.1.0dec644 Click 'OK' to continue or 'Cancel' to cancel this installation. d	
express. License	OK Cancel	
<ul> <li>I accept th</li> <li>I do not ac</li> </ul>	cept the terms in the license agreement	

- 8. Click **OK** to continue installing the update.
- 9. Click Install.

The Installation screens for the Legacy Windows Collector page is displayed.

Lor	
	Status:
	Installing Erlang
11-1 × 1 ×	
allShield -	
allShield -	< Back Next > Cancel
allShield -	< Back. Mext >
aliShield -	<back next=""> Cancel</back>
aishield - Yetwitn	< Back Mext > Cancel ess Legacy Windows Collector
Netwith Installing	< Back Next > Cancel       ess Legacy Windows Collector       RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector       ram features you selected are being installed
Netwitn Netwitn Installing The proc	<  Eack Next > Cancel Ess Legacy Windows Collector RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector pram features you selected are being installed.
Netwith Installing The proc	<u>A Back</u> Mext > Cancel       ess Legacy Windows Collector       RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector       gram features you selected are being installed.       Please wait while the Installation Wizard installs RSA Netwitness Legacy       Windows Collector. This may take several minutes.
Netwith Installing The proc	< Back
Netwith Installing The proc	<u>A Back</u> Mext > Cancel          ess Legacy Windows Collector         RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector         gram features you selected are being installed.         Please wait while the Installation Wizard installs RSA Netwitness Legacy         Windows Collector. This may take several minutes.         Status:         Installing RabbitMQ
Netwith Installing The proc	< Back
Netwith Installing The proc	< Back
Netwith Installing The proc	<u>ess Legacy Windows Collector</u> RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector         gram features you selected are being installed.         Please wait while the Installation Wizard installs RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector. This may take several minutes.         Status:         Installing RabbitMQ
Netwith Installing The proc	< Back

After the update installation completes, the Next button becomes active.

10. Click Next.

The Installation Completed page is displayed.

🚏 Netwitness Legacy Wind	lows Collector
	Installation Completed
	Show the Windows Installer log Collector Log: C:\Program Files\NwLogCollector\installlog.txt
	Sack Finish Cancel

- 11. (Optional) If you want to review a log of the update installation, select the **Show the Windows Installer** log checkbox.
- 12. Click Finish.
- 13. Add or reconfigure the Windows Legacy Collector Host and Service in NetWitness Platform. For details on adding or reconfiguring Windows Legacy Collector Host and Service in Netwitness Platform, refer <u>Add or Reconfigure a Windows Legacy Collector Host and Service in NetWitness Platform</u>.
- 14. Reboot the machine.

This completes the update of the Legacy Windows Collector to NetWitness 12.0.

## Fresh Install 12.0 Legacy Windows Collector

This section describes how to install the 12.0 Legacy Windows Collector on a Windows 2008, 2012, 2016, or 2019 64-Bit server

#### To install the NetWitness Legacy Windows Collector on a Windows 2008, 2012, 2016, or 2019 64-Bit server:

- 1. Depending on your version of NetWitness Platform, navigate to one of the following URLs on NetWitness Community:
  - For NetWitness 11.6.1.1 only, navigate to https://community.netwitness.com//t5/netwitnessplatform-downloads/rsa-netwitness-platform-11-6-1-1-patch-download/ta-p/643401 on NetWitness Community. Click NetWitness Logs & Network 11.6.1.1 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.6, navigate to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-6-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/606860 on NetWitness Community. Click NetWitness Logs & Packets 11.6 - Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 11.7, navigate to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/netwitness-platformdownloads/rsa-netwitness-11-7-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/644208 on NetWitness link. Click NetWitness Platform 11.7 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
  - For NetWitness 12.0, navigate to https://community.netwitness.com/t5/rsa-netwitness-platformstaged/netwitness-12-0-legacy-windows-collector-download/ta-p/684864 on NetWitness link. Click NetWitness Platform 12.0 Legacy Windows Collector to download the ZIP archive.
- 2. Unzip the downloaded file.
- 3. Copy the NWLegacyWindowsCollector-version-number.exe to the Windows Server.
- 4. Right click on the NWLegacyWindowsCollector-version-number.exe and select Run As Administrator.

The **Welcome** page of installation wizard is displayed.

🛱 Netwitness Legacy Wir	ndows Collector	x
	Welcome to the Installation Wizard for RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector The Installation Wizard will allow you to modify, repair, or remove RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector. To continue, click Next.	
	< Back Next > Cancel	

5. Click Next.

The License Agreement page is displayed.

License Agreement	licence a	areemer	st carofully				Z
Ficase read the following	license a	greemer	ic careruity	•			
LICENSE AGREEME	NT						2
DEND CADEDITIV	* * * * * *	IMP	ORTANI	INE	FORMATIC	N PLE	ASE
programs and ot information, th expressly condi License Aqreeme	This her p e use tione nt (t	Sof oropr of dup	tware ietary which on acc qreeme	cont mat is : ept: ent)	cains co cerial s subject ance of	mpute ind to ar this	r id
<ul> <li>I accept the terms in the I do not accept the terms</li> </ul>	license a ; in the lic	greemer :ense ag	nt Ireement				Print
stallShield							

6. Read the License agreement carefully, select the I accept the terms in the license agreement radio button, and click Next.

The Ready to Install the Program page is displayed.

Netwitness Legacy Windows	Collector - InstallShield Wizard
	Preparing to Install
0	RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector Setup is preparing the InstallShield Wizard, which will guide you through the program setup process. Please wait.
1. 1. 1.	Extracting: RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector.msi
P	
	Cancel

#### 7. Click Install.

The Installation screens for the Legacy Windows Collector page are displayed.

Installing The proc	RSA Netwitness Legacy Window ram features you selected are being i	<b>s Collector</b> nstalled.		4
ß	Please wait while the Installation Wi Windows Collector. This may take se Status:	ard installs R veral minute:	SA Netwitness Legad 5.	y
	Installing Erlang			
	9			
tallShield -				
		- 1	1	

P	Please wait while the Installation Wizard installs RSA Netwitness Legacy Windows Collector. This may take several minutes.
	Status:
	Installing RabbitMQ

The Installation Completed page is displayed.

🕞 Netwitness Legacy Wind	lows Collector
	Installation Completed
	Show the Windows Installer log Collector Log: C:\Program Files\NwLogCollector\installlog.txt

- 8. (Optional) If you want to review a log of the installation, select the **Show the Windows Installer** log checkbox.
- 9. Click Finish.
- 10. Reboot the machine.

This completes the installation of the 12.0 Legacy Windows Collector. Please refer to the **Windows** Legacy and NetApp Collection Configuration Guide on NetWitness Community for instructions on how to configure Legacy Windows collection in NetWitness.

## **Configure the Windows Server**

For the NetWitness to communicate with the Windows Server, you need to allow Remote Event Log Management on the Windows Server.

- 1. On the Windows Server, in Services, start the Remote Registry Service.
- 2. In Firewall, enable Remote Event Log Management for your network, as shown below.



## **Change the Windows Legacy Collector IP Address**

Note: The procedures in this section apply to NetWitness 11.5 and later only.

On occasion, you may need to change the IP address of your Windows Legacy Collector. You may also need to edit any Destination Groups that you have configured.

#### **Change WLC IP Address**

The following procedure describes how to change the IP address for your system.

- 1. Log onto the Windows Legacy Collector system and manually change the IP address on the system.
- 2. In the UI, confirm that the Log Collector service corresponding to the WLC system shows up in error (Red). It might take some time for it to reflect the changed status.
- 3. On the NetWitness Server, use the **nw-manage** utility to view the host information for the WLC using the following command:

```
nw-manage --list-hosts
```

Sample output from running the command is shown here:

```
{
"id" : "fdb8150c-e040-459e-8cc5-3c60ec2c65ae",
"displayName" : "WLC-HOST-104",
"hostname" : "10.101.216.102",
"ipv4" : "10.101.216.102",
"ipv4Public" : null
} ]
```

You use the value of "id" from your output in the following step.

4. Use the **nw-manage** utility to change the IP address of the WLC. For the **host-id** argument, use the value for the **"id"** that you noted from step 3. For the **ipv4** value, use the new IP Address to which you are changing.

```
nw-manage --update-host --host-id "fdb8150c-e040-459e-8cc5-3c60ec2c65ae" --
ipv4 10.101.216.105
```

5. After you see the message that the previous command ran successfully, go to the NetWitness Server UI and verify that the WLC service is running without any errors.

#### **Edit Destination Groups For Log Collectors and VLCs**

The Windows Legacy Collector is often configured with Destination Groups to forward events to Log Collectors or Virtual Log Collectors. If the IP address of any such Destination LC or VLC is changed, the Windows Legacy Collector can no longer forward events. To remediate this, you must edit the Destination groups for the WLC, making sure to select the new LC or VLC IP Address.

## **Troubleshoot a Fresh or Upgrade Install**

## Logs to Examine for Information

Refer to the following log files if you need to troubleshoot problems:

- %systemDrive%\Netwitness\ng\logcollector\MessageBroker.log
- %systemDrive%\Program Files\NwLogCollector\installlog.txt

Run C:\Program Files\NwLogCollector\ziplogfiles.vbs to generate the *hostname*\_ WLCversion\_timestamp.zip that contains all the log files and other information needed for troubleshooting.

## **Issues with the Lockbox**

When you create a lockbox password on a new Windows Legacy Collector, you might see the following error:

failed to set secure storage password: failed to create lockbox: The Lockbox or cryptography library could not be found.

This can occur if you are running Windows Legacy Collector version 11.x.

If you encounter this issue, download and install both of the following redistributable packages:

- Visual C++ 2010: https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=14632
- Visual C++ 2012: https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=30679

## (Optional) Backup and Restore Legacy Windows Collector

This section tells you how to upgrade from 10.6.4 to NetWitness 12.0 for the Legacy Windows Collector.

**Note:** You only need to do this if you are changing the Windows VM where you run the Windows Legacy Collector.

During upgrade to NetWitness 12.0, the backup script for the Windows Legacy Collector is invoked automatically, and creates the 10.6.4 configuration and run-time backups. After the 12.0 installation is completed, run the Restore script to restore the configuration and run-time files for the updated Windows Legacy Collection.

## **Restore the Windows Legacy Collection Backup after**

## Upgrade

To restore the Windows Legacy Collection setup on a newly upgraded NetWitness 11 platform:

- 1. On the Windows Legacy Collector, open a command prompt window.
- 2. Navigate to C:\Program Files\NwLogCollector, where the scripts are stored.
- 3. Run the following commands for restoring a backup:
  - Backup configuration files: WLC-Restore.bat "Config-bkup timestamp.zip"
  - Backup run-time files: WLC-Restore.bat "Runtime-bkup\_timestamp.zip"
- 4. Once the restore is completed, set the lockbox SSV to use the password that you created during 10.6.4 setup.
  - a. In the **Security Analytics** menu, select **Services**, then select your Windows Legacy Collector and choose **Explore**.
  - b. From the left navigation pane, expand logcollection > properties > crypto.
  - c. Run the following command: op=setssv pw=password\_for\_10.6.x\_lockbox, and hit Send.

### **Revert Windows Legacy Collection from 12.0 Back to 10.6.4**

#### To revert the Windows Legacy Collection setup from 12.0 back to 10.6.4:

1. Uninstall the 12.0 Setup. Note the location of the backup folder created by the system during the uninstall procedure.

- 2. Install the 10.6.4 version of the Windows Legacy Collector.
- 3. Navigate to C:\Program Files\NwLogCollector, where the scripts are stored.
- 4. Run the Restore script from backup folder present in C:\Program Files\NwLogCollector to restore the configuration and run-time setup on the 10.6.4 Windows Legacy Collector.
  - Backup configuration files: WLC-Restore.bat "Config-bkup timestamp.zip"
  - Backup run-time files: WLC-Restore.bat "Runtime-bkup timestamp.zip"
- 5. Once the restore is completed, set the lockbox SSV to use the password that you created during 10.6.4 setup.
  - a. In the **Security Analytics** menu, select **Services**, then select your Windows Legacy Collector and choose **Explore**.
  - b. From the left navigation pane, expand logcollection > properties > crypto.
  - c. Run the following command: op=setssv pw=password\_for\_10.6.x\_lockbox, and hit Send.

## Add or Reconfigure a Windows Legacy Collector Host

## and Service in NetWitness Platform

For this version of the Windows Legacy Collector, NetWitness has provided a script that replaces the manual steps of adding a Windows Legacy Collector host and service in the NetWitness UI.

To create a Windows Legacy Collector Host and Service in NetWitness:

- 1. SSH to your NetWitness server.
- 2. Run the following command:

```
wlc-cli-client --host-display-name hostDisplayName --service-display-name
serviceDisplayName --host WLChostIPAddress --port 50101 --use-ssl false
```

The parameters are explained below:

- --host-display-name: the name for the host as it is displayed in the NetWitness Hosts page
- --service-display-name: the name for the host as it is displayed in the NetWitness Services page
- --host: the IP address for the Windows Legacy Collector
- --port: the port NetWitness uses to communicate with the Windows Legacy Collector. The recommended value is 50101.
- 3. You will be prompted to supply the following information:
  - Windows Log Collector REST Username and Windows Log Collector REST Password: you must supply admin credentials for the Windows Legacy Collector.
  - Security Server Username and Security Server Password: you must supply admin credentials for NetWitness.

After you complete this procedure, you should see the Windows Legacy Collector Host and Service as shown in the following screenshots.

HOSTS SERVICES									
Groups		Host	5						
+ - 🛛 O		+ -	0 🗹   🗧	Update Host 🔅	) 👼 F		st 🥰 Discov	ver 🗾 Ins	stall 🕑
Name		🗆 Nam	ie ~		~ н	ost			Services
🗄 All		11 🗆 w.c			1	0.25.51.185	5		1
		RESPOND	INVESTIGATE	M	ONITOR	CONFIGURE	ADMIN		
HOSTS SERVICES EVENT SOU									
Groups	Service	Services							
+ - 🛛 O	+ ⊗ - ☑   📷 Licenses ⊗								
Name		Name ~		~	Licensed	Host		Туре	
		WLC-185			$\bigotimes$	WLC		Log Collector	